
  

DESERT WATER AGENCY BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
MAY 17, 2016                                                                      REGULAR MEETING AGENDA                                            
 
REGULAR MEETING   8:00 A.M.   OPERATIONS CENTER - 1200 SOUTH GENE AUTRY TRAIL  – PALM SPRINGS – CALIFORNIA 

About Desert Water Agency: 
Desert Water Agency operates independently of any other local government.  Its autonomous elected board members are directly accountable to the people they serve. The Agency is one of the desert’s 
two State Water Contractors and provides water and resource management, including recycling, for a 325-square-mile area of Western Riverside County, encompassing parts of Cathedral City, Desert 
Hot Springs, outlying Riverside County and Palm Springs. 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES –  A. April 19, 2016  CIOFFI  
                                  B. May 6, 2016 (Special)  CIOFFI                       
                                 

3. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   KRAUSE 
 

4. COMMITTEE REPORTS –   A. Executive – May 12, 2016  CIOFFI                        
                 
5. PUBLIC INPUT:  

Members of the public may comment on any item not listed on the agenda, but within the jurisdiction of the Agency.  In addition, members of the public 
may speak on any item listed on the agenda as that item comes up for consideration.  Speakers are requested to keep their comments to no more than 
three (3) minutes.  As provided in the Brown Act, the Board is prohibited from acting on items not listed on the agenda. 
 

6. SECRETARY-TREASURER’S REPORT  - APRIL 2016  BLOOMER                                                                        
  

7. ITEMS FOR ACTION  
 

A. Water Use Violation - Civil Penalty Hearings (s)  KRAUSE 
 

B. Request Award of Contract – Zone 1240 Booster   JOHNSON 
 

C. 2016/2017 Groundwater Replenishment Assessments  KRAUSE 
 

D. Request Adoption of Resolution No. 1130 Extending Services Priority Policy  RIDDELL 
 

E. Local Agency Formation Commission Election  KRAUSE 
 
8. PUBLIC INFORMATION  METZGER 
 A. Media Information 
 B. PI Activities 
 
9. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION   

A. State Water Project Contractors Authority & State Water Contractors Meetings – April, 2016  RIDDELL 
B. April Water Production Comparison  KRAUSE 
C. Conservation Program Update (PowerPoint presentation)  METZGER 
D. Directors Report on ACWA Conference  DIRECTORS                                                                

 
10. DIRECTORS COMMENTS AND REQUESTS 

 
11. CLOSED SESSION 

 
 A.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al 
 
 B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. County of Riverside, et al 
  
 C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Desert Water Agency vs. U.S. Department of Interior 



 
DWA Board Agenda 
May 17, 2016 
Page 2 
 
 
 
 
 D. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Mission Springs Water District vs. Desert Water Agency 
 
 E. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 
  Property: 1.17 acre lot North of the Northeast corner of Sunrise Way and Mesquite Avenue,  
  APN No. 502-560-038 
  Agency Negotiators: Mark S. Krause, General Manager and Steve L. Johnson, Asst. General Manager 
  Negotiating Parties: Chris Thomsen, New Mesquite HOA 
  Under Negotiation: Price and terms of possible acquisition 
   
12. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION – REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

 
13. ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Any person 
with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting is asked to contact Desert Water Agency’s Executive Secretary, at (760) 323-4971, at least 48 working 
hours prior to the meeting to enable the Agency to make reasonable arrangements.  Copies of records provided to Board members which relate to any agenda item to be discussed in open session may 
be obtained from the Agency at the address indicated on the agenda. 



8656 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 04/19/16 

 

2-A 
MINUTES 

OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
April 19, 2016 

 
DWA Board: James Cioffi, President  ) 
 Joseph K. Stuart, Vice President   )         
 Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer ) 
 Patricia G. Oygar, Director ) 
  Craig A. Ewing, Director ) 
   
DWA Staff: Mark S. Krause, General Manager ) 
 Steve Johnson, Asst. General Manager ) 
 Martin S. Krieger, Finance Director ) 
 Sylvia Baca, Asst. Secretary of the Board ) 
 Ashley Metzger, Outreach/Conserv. Manager ) 
 Irene Gaudinez, Human Resources Manager ) 
    
Consultant: Michael T. Riddell, Best Best & Krieger ) 
 David F. Scriven, Krieger & Stewart ) 
 
Public: Sy Dreher, Seven Lakes HOA ) 
   
      

Attendance 

17453.  President Cioffi opened the meeting at 8:00 a.m. and asked 
everyone to join Director Oygar in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
   
17454.   President Cioffi called for approval of the April 5, 2016 
Regular Board meeting minutes.  
  
  Vice President Stuart moved for approval. After a second by 
Director Oygar, the minutes were approved as written. 
 
17455.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
provide an update on Agency operations. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated on April 1 staff responded to a damaged 
fire service vault at 68929 Perez Rd. The vault is located next to a 
driveway. The business owner does not know what or how it happened. 
Staff notified the Cathedral City Police department and filed an incident 
report. Repairs have been made. 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
 
Approval of 04/05/16 
Regular Board Mtg. 
Minutes  
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Manager’s 
Report 
 
 
 
Damaged Service Vault 
– 68929 Perez Rd. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8657 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 04/19/16 

 
  Mr. Krause stated on April 7, stand-by responded to a hit fire 
hydrant on Avenida Caballeros, south of Tahquitz Canyon Way. Staff was 
informed by Palm Springs Police that this was caused by a drunk driver. 
The gasket and bolts were replaced and the hydrant was placed back in 
service.  
 
  Continuing his report, Mr. Krause noted on April 8 staff 
responded to a hit one inch backflow at 68352 Perez Rd. Authorization was 
given for staff to make the necessary repairs and the backflow is back in 
service. A police report was made and the water loss was metered. 
 
  On April 10, stand-by responded to a hit 4-inch air-vac on 
Highway 111, on the Snow Creek line. Staff shut the air-vac valve off; there 
was no water loss. The air-vac was repaired and is back in service. A police 
report was made. 
 
  Continuing with his report, Mr. Krause inquired about 
reporting on the Legislative Adhoc Committee. 
 
  Mr. Riddell stated the Brown Act does not require minutes 
from Committee meetings, whether Standing or Adhoc. He suggested it be 
left to the Board for their preference. 
 
  Director Ewing, Legislative Committee Chair stated the 
Committee held a conference call with Bob Reeb, Legislative Lobbyist for 
an update on the Agency’s legislative positions. He noted that ACWA has 
pulled back from their position on a proposed amendment to Article X of 
the California Constitution. 
 
  Mr. Krause noted several meetings and activities he 
participated in during the past several weeks. 
 
  Mr. Krause announced that due to the majority of the Board 
and staff attending ACWA’s Spring conference, the May 3 Board meeting 
will be cancelled. 
 
  Mr. Krause reminded everyone of the Special Board meeting 
to be held on June 28 at 8:00 a.m. to adopt the 2016/2017 Budget. 
 
  Concluding his report, Mr. Krause noted follow up items from 
the last Board meeting; 1) SB350 (Cal-ISO) was introduced by Senator De 
Leon, and 2) The fire hydrant in the 700 block of Tahquitz Canyon is back 
in service.   
   
17456.  President Cioffi noted the minutes for the April 8, 2016 
Conservation & Public Affairs Committee were provided in the Board’s 
packet. 
 

General Manager’s 
Report 
(Cont.) 
 
Hit Fire Hydrant – 
Avenida Caballeros 
 
 
 
Hit Backflow – Perez 
Rd. 
 
 
 
 
 
Hit Air-Vac/Hwy 111 
Snow Creek 
 
 
 
 
 
Legislative Adhoc 
Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Manager’s 
Meetings & Activities 
 
 
 
May 3 Board Meeting 
Cancelled 
 
 
 
June 28 Special Board 
Meeting (Budget) 
 
 
Follow Up Items – 1) 
SB350 
2) Tahquitz Fire 
Hydrant 
 
 
 
Committee Reports 
Conservation & Public 
Affairs 04/08/16 
 
 
 



8658 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 04/19/16 

 
  President Cioffi noted the minutes for the April 12, 2016 
Executive Committee were provided in the Board’s packet. 
 
17457.  President Cioffi opened the meeting for public input. 
 
  There being no one from the public wishing to address the 
Board, President Cioffi closed the public comment period. 
 
17458.  President Cioffi called upon Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer to 
provide an overview of financial activities for the month of March 2016. 
 
  Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer reported that the Operating 
Fund received $1,537,176 in Water Sales Revenue and $86,040 in 
Reclamation Sales Revenue. $2,041,487 was paid out in Accounts Payable. 
Year-to-date Water Sales are 12% over budget, Year-to-date Total 
Revenues are 11% over budget, and Year-to-date Total Expenses are 6% 
under budget. There were 22,241 active services as of March 31, 2016 
compared to 22,184 as of February 29, 2016. 
 
  Reporting on the General Fund, Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer 
stated $41,812 was received in Property Tax Revenue. $21,574 was 
received in Miscellaneous receipts from MWD for the Multi-Year Water 
Pool purchase reimbursement. $1,055,708 was paid out in State Water 
Project charges. 
   
  Regarding the Wastewater Fund, $5,007 was received in 
Sewer Contract payments. There are a total of 75 contracts with 36 
delinquent (35%). $72,644 was paid out in Accounts Payable. 
 
17459.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
present the civil penalty hearing for water use violations. 
 
  Mr. Krause noted there have been more than 164 violations 
issued and have received two hearing requests for today’s meeting. He 
stated the first appellant is Seven Lakes Homeowners Association.  He 
presented information on the appellant and noted the violations: 1) 
Irrigating between the restricted hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m., and 2) 
Runoff from irrigation onto hardscape. The fine is $100 and the reason for 
appeal is the landscaper was testing the irrigation system. 
 
  Sy Dreher, representing Seven Lakes Homeowners 
Association, stated their irrigation technician was testing the system at the 
time of the violation. He stated that they have made extensive conservation 
efforts on the property. 
 
  Director Ewing noted his concern with water runoff. 
 
 

Committee Reports: 
(Cont.) 
Executive 04/12/16 
 
 
Public Input 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Secretary-Treasurer’s 
Report – March 2016 
 
 
Operating Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Wastewater Fund 
 
 
 
 
Item for Action: 
Water Use Violations – 
Civil Penalty Hearing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sy Dreher – Seven 
Lakes HOA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8659 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 04/19/16 

 
  Responding to Vice President Stuart, Mr. Dreher stated 
irrigation is set according to the mandatory dates/times. 
 
  President Cioffi made a motion to uphold the appeal and deny 
the penalty. After a second by Vice President Stuart, the motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
  Mr. Krause presented information on appellant, Julie Hewett. 
He noted the violations: 1) Irrigation observed on a restricted day between 
the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m., and 2) Runoff from irrigation onto 
hardscape. The fine amount is $100 and the reason for appeal is landscaper 
was working on irrigation timer. 
 
  Ms. Hewett stated that her landscaper was testing the system 
due to a previous high bill. 
 
  Director Ewing expressed concern with the runoff issue. 
 
  Responding to Vice President Stuart, Ms. Hewett stated 
irrigation is set according to prescribed time/day and property does not have 
a smart controller. 
 
  President Cioffi made a motion to uphold the appeal and deny 
the penalty. After a second by Director Oygar, the motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
  President Cioffi requested the appellant contact the Agency 
for information on the smart controller program. 
 
17460.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
discuss the 2016/2017 Groundwater Replenishment Assessments Draft 
Engineer’s reports. 
 
  Mr. Krause introduced David Scriven, representing Krieger & 
Stewart, who has prepared the report. He noted the report is being presented 
today for discussion purposes. A final report will be presented at a public 
meeting on May 17, and a determination made that funds should be raised 
by a replenishment assessment for Board acceptance. A public hearing will 
be held on June 7. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated the proposed replenishment assessment rate 
for 2016/2017 for Whitewater, Mission Creek and Garnet Hill Subbasins is 
$102 per acre-foot. The proposed rate would remain the same as 2015/2016 
to allow time to comply with Proposition 218 requirements before the rate 
is increased. Rate increases will be considered in the upcoming Proposition 
218 process scheduled for later this year. A rate increase, if approved, will 
not take effect until July 1, 2017. 
 

Action Item: 
(Cont.) 
Civil Penalty Hearings 
Seven Lakes HOA 
 
Uphold Appeal/Deny 
Penalty 
 
 
 
 
Julie Hewett 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Uphold Appeal/Deny 
Penalty 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Items for Discussion: 
2016/2017 
Groundwater 
Replenishment 
Assessments – Draft 
Engineer’s Reports 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8660 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 04/19/16 

 
  Mr. Krause explained due to recent dramatic increases in 
imported water charges, that replenishment costs have risen dramatically. 
Delta related charges have more than doubled from less than $100,000,000 
per year in 2015 to more than $200,000,000 projected for 2016. 
Conservation has reduced replenishing assessment revenue by 
approximately 20% or $700,000. He noted that Agency reserves have been 
used to pay for these assessments.  
 
  Continuing his report, Mr. Krause said the 5-year rate 
increase by the Board in 2010 did not anticipate the current Delta charge 
increases or the current level of increased water conservation. Starting in 
2017, the replenishment assessment should be gradually increased over a 
short number of years so it will ultimately cover each year’s charges for 
imported water with no further shortfall accrual. He then discussed the 
changes from 2010 to 2016 for the estimated water production and 
assessments. 
 
17461.  President Cioffi asked Outreach and Conservation Manager 
Metzer to report on the Upcoming Outreach and Events. 
 
  Mrs. Metzger referred to the list provided with the Board 
packet. She indicated there are 22 registrants for the May 13 facilities tour. 
 
17462.  President Cioffi asked General Manager Krause to report on 
the March Water Use Reduction Figures. 
 
  Mr. Krause reported that the Agency and its customers 
achieved a 15 percent reduction during March 2016 compared to March 
2013.  
 
17463.  Director Ewing noted his attendance at the National Water 
Resources Association Federal Water Issues conference held in Washington 
D.C. He indicated he and Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer met with staff from 
Senator Feinstein and Congressman Ruiz’s office. 
 
  Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer noted discussions on EPA 
issues. 
 
17464.  Regarding water use violations observed by DWA staff, Vice 
President Stuart recommended that staff continue to cite locations. During 
the penalty hearings, the Board can decide whether irrigation testing 
occurred and will make a determination. 
   
  President Cioffi announced he received a letter from 
ACWA/JPIA commending DWA on its loss history rate. 
 
 
 

Discussion Items: 
(Cont.) 
G/W Replenishment 
Assessments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Upcoming Outreach 
and Events 
 
 
 
 
 
 
March Water Use 
Reduction Figures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Directors Report on 
NWRA Conference 
Director Ewing 
Secretary-Treasurer 
Bloomer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Directors 
Comments/Requests 
Water Use Violations 
 
 
 
 
ACWA/JPIA 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8661 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 04/19/16 

 
17465.  At 9:59 a.m., President Cioffi convened into Closed Session 
for the purpose of Conference with Legal Counsel, (A) Existing Litigation, 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Agua Caliente Band 
of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al; (B) Existing 
Litigation, pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), ACBCI 
vs. County of Riverside, et al; (C) Existing  Litigation, pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Desert Water Agency vs. U.S. 
Department of Interior; (D) Existing Litigation, pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Mission Springs Water District vs. Desert 
Water Agency; and (E) Real Property Negotiators, pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54956.8, Property-APN 502-560-038, Agency Negotiators: 
Mark S. Krause, General Manager and Steve L. Johnson, Assistant General 
Manager, Negotiating Parties: Chris Thomsen, New Mesquite HOA, Under 
Negotiation: Price and terms of possible acquisition.  
 
17466.  At 11:12 a.m., President Cioffi reconvened the meeting into 
open session and announced there was no reportable action. 
 
17467.  In the absence of any further business, President Cioffi 
adjourned the meeting at 11:13 a.m. 
  
  

                                         ____________________________________ 
                                         James Cioffi, President                                  

 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 

Closed Session: 
A. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. CVWD, et 
al 
B. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. Riverside 
County 
C. Existing Litigation – 
DWA vs. U.S. Dept. of 
Interior 
D. Existing Litigation – 
MSWD vs. DWA 
E. Real Property 
Negotiators  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reconvene – No 
Reportable Action 
 
 
 
Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



8662 

Desert Water Agency Special Board Meeting Minutes 05/06/16 

 

2-B 
MINUTES 

OF THE SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
May 6, 2016 

 
 
DWA Board: James Cioffi, President  ) 
 Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer ) 
  Craig A. Ewing, Director ) 
 
Absent: Joseph K. Stuart, Vice President ) 
 Patricia G. Oygar, Director ) 
   
DWA Staff: Mark S. Krause, General Manager ) 
 Steve Johnson, Asst. General Manager ) 
 Martin S. Krieger, Finance Director ) 
 Sylvia Baca, Asst. Secretary of the Board ) 
     

 
Attendance 

17468.  President Cioffi opened the meeting at 9:00 a.m. and asked 
everyone to join him in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
  
17469.  President Cioffi opened the meeting for public input. 
 
  There being no one from the public wishing to address the 
Board, President Cioffi closed the public comment period. 
 
17470.  At 9:01 a.m., President Cioffi convened into Closed Session 
for the purpose of Conference with Legal Counsel, (A) Real Property 
Negotiators, pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8, Property-APN 
502-560-038, Agency Negotiators: Mark S. Krause, General Manager and 
Steve L. Johnson, Assistant General Manager, Negotiating Parties: Chris 
Thomsen, New Mesquite HOA, Under Negotiation: Price and terms of 
possible acquisition.  
 
17471.  At 9:29 a.m., President Cioffi reconvened the meeting into 
open session and announced there was no reportable action. 
 
 
 
 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Input 
 
 
 
 
 
Closed Session: 
A. Real Property 
Negotiators  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reconvene – No 
Reportable Action 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8663 

Desert Water Agency Special Board Meeting Minutes 05/06/16 

 
17472.  In the absence of any further business, President Cioffi 
adjourned the meeting at 9:30 a.m. 
  
  

                                         ____________________________________ 
                                         James Cioffi, President                                  

 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 

Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



3 

Page 1 of 3 

 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
MAY 17, 2016 

  
  

 
 
 

 
On April 24 at approximately 12:05 p.m., stand by responded to a hit backflow at 1702 Wack 
Wack Plaza. Authorization was given to make the necessary repairs from the HOA president. The 
water loss was metered. A police report was not made; the HOA president knows the person that 
caused the damage and is working it out with him.       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 3 

 

 

General Manager’s Meetings and Activities 
 
Meetings: 
 
 4/20-4/21/16 State Water Contractor’s Meetings in Sacramento 
 4/21/16 State and Federal Contractor’s Water Authority  Meeting in Sacramento 
 5/2-5/5/16 ACWA Conference in Monterey 
 5/11/16 San Gorgonio Pass Sub-Basin SGMA Planning Meeting 
 5/12/16 Executive Committee Meeting 
 5/17/16 Quarterly GM Meeting 
   (DWA, CVWD, MSWD/2004 Settlement Agreement) 

 

Activities: 

 E-Billing 
 Outreach Talking Points 
 Water Rate Forum 
 Draft GSA MOU for Indio Sub-basin (funding provisions) 
 USGS cooperative agreement 
 IRWMP Round 3 Invoices 
 IRWMP Turf Buy Back In Kind Contributions by Customer 
 SWP Delta Charges 
 SWP 60% Allocation 
 ACWA Conference Energy and Groundwater Committee 
 State Drinking Water Program Fees 
 Extension of State Emergency Drought Restrictions and Comments Letters 
 ACBCI Public Records Request 
 Agency Site Maintenance 
 Agency Vehicle Maintenance 
 SWRCB Well Site Geo Tracker  
 Well 6  and Well 32 Water Quality Remediation issues 
 Whitewater Ranch Water Service Agreement 
 Rate Study 
 Replenishment Assessment Charge 
 Snow Creek Hydro SCE contract extension 
 Whitewater Hydro SCE contract extension 
 SWP/DWA tax rates 
 ACBCI PRA Whitewater Mutual Water Company 
 State and Federal Contractors Water Authority and Delta Specific Project Committee 
 Property Acquisition - New Mesquite HOA 
 MSWD Lawsuit 
 MSWD Basin Boundary Modification – Garnet Hill Sub-Area 
 Yuba Water Order 
 Snow Creek Security 
 

 
 



Page 3 of 3 

 

Reminder: Agency offices will be closed on Monday, May 30 in observance of Memorial Day. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Reminder:  

There will be a Special Board meeting on June 28 (FY 2016/2017 Budgets) 

 
 





























7-A 

2016/mark/051716penaltyhearingstaffreport 

 
STAFF REPORT 

TO 
DESERT WATER AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
MAY 17, 2016 

 
RE: WATER USE VIOLATION – CIVIL PENALTY HEARINGS 
 
Starting after the March 1st board meeting, staff began issuing water use violations 
under the new ordinance; more than 195 violations have been issued.  Recipients of the 
violations have 7 days to request a hearing in writing.  Staff has received two such 
requests for a hearing on the violations since the last hearing on April 19. Both 
violations have hearings scheduled for today’s board meeting. 

The following is a summary of the procedure for the hearings. 

Staff has provided the Board with the correspondence for each of the violations 
including photographic evidence.  Photographs will also be projected during the hearing 
to provide the board and customer a common point of reference for discussion. 

Staff will introduce each violation with a summary of the event.  After the introduction 
the customer will be invited by the Board to speak concerning the violation.  If the 
recipient of the violation is not present or does not wish to speak, staff will read the 
violation summary and submit the written petition into the record for board action. 

Each petition will be discussed and voted on separately. 

As a point of reference, Staff has notified Agency customers concerning water 
conservation regulations in several different ways: 

Recent Notifications 

1. Published the ordinance in The Public Record 
2. Published the ordinance in the Agency Website 
3. Social media outlets 
4. KMIR, KESQ, KPCC, the Joey English Show 
5. Desert Sun Valley Voice 
6. Palm Desert Patch 
7. Email to Palm Springs and Cathedral City Chambers 
8. Emails to HOA in our contact list 
9. Emails to high volume users 

 



2016/mark/051716penaltyhearingstaffreport 

 

 

 

Comprehensive Notifications – Since June 2015 

1. Direct mail to all customers 
2. Bill Inserts 
3. Bill on envelope messaging 
4. Billboards 
5. Online advertising (KESQ) 
6. Television advertising (Time Warner) 
7. Social media 
8. Several public presentations on TV 
9. Print and radio Interviews 
10. DWA and CVWD websites 

 



1. Roger Bergensen, 1193 Cassia Trail  
 

a. On Wednesday, April 27, at 4:08 p.m. a Desert Water Agency 
representative observed water use violations at said address and reported 
them. 

i. Irrigating between the restricted hours of 7 a.m. and 7 p.m. 
ii. Runoff from irrigation onto hardscape occurred. 

 
b. Fine amount $50 

i. Single-family home 
ii. First violation  

 
c. Reason for petition 

i. Timer malfunctioning and wind 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  













2. Brant Griffin, 695 S Vista  
 

a. On Monday, April 4, at 4:15 p.m. a Desert Water Agency representative 
observed water use violations at said address and reported them. 
 

i. Irrigation was observed during restricted outdoor watering hours of 
7 a.m. and 7 p.m. 

ii. Runoff from irrigation onto hardscape occurred. 
 

b. Fine amount $50 
i. Residential 
ii. First violation 

 
c. Reason for petition 

i. No reason given 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 















7-B 
 
 
      

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
MAY 17, 2016  

 
 

RE: RECOMMEND CONTRACT AWARD FOR CONSTRUCTING 
ZONE 1240 BOOSTER PLANT (DESERT PALISADE TRACT)  

 
 
On May 10, 2016, the Agency received five (5) bids for subject work. The bid amounts 
and the Engineer’s estimate are as follows: 
 
CONTRACTOR       BID AMOUNT 
Cora Constructors          $741,000 
Borden Excavating, Inc         $775,775 
Canyon Springs Enterprises        $787,230 
Pacific Hydrotech Corporation        $804,200 
RC Foster Corporation         $995,600 
 
Engineer’s Estimate          $800,000  
Revised Engineer’s Estimate        $1,130,000  
 
Cora Constructors submitted the lowest responsive bid for the project, approximately 
4.7% lower than the second low bid from Borden Excavating, Inc. Cora Constructors is 
considered a capable contractor with a current Class A contractor’s license No.766304. 
 
The 2015/2016 Capital Improvement Budget includes Work Order 15-150-B for the 
installation of said booster plant. The current budget for the work order is $950,000 to 
include engineering, construction, inspection, and overhead costs. To date, $71,230 has 
been spent on engineering design. 
 
The current budget amount of $950,000 was based on the original Engineer’s 
construction cost estimate of $800,000. The estimate was evaluated by Krieger and 
Stewart at $1,130,000. The increase was based on recent costs that Krieger and 
Stewart experienced on booster projects for other water agencies. Staff anticipated 
having to augment the existing budget; however, the bid submitted by Cora 
Constructors does not require a budget augmentation.                
 
Staff recommends awarding the Contract for subject work to Cora Constructors in the 
amount of $741,000. Based on the bidding documents, the project is scheduled to begin 
in June 2016 with completion by January 2017.  



7-C 
 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
MAY 17, 2016 

  
 
RE: PUBLIC MEETING ON GROUNDWATER REPLENISHMENT 
 

(1)  2016/2017 MISSION CREEK GROUNDWATER 
  REPLENISHMENT ASSESSMENT 
 
 (2) 2016/2017 WHITEWATER GROUNDWATER 
  REPLENISHMENT ASSESSMENT 
 

(3) 2016/2017 GARNET HILL GROUNDWATER 
REPLENISHMENT ASSESSMENT 

 
At its April 19, 2016 meeting, the Board discussed the draft Engineer’s Report on 
Groundwater Replenishment Assessments for the Mission Creek, Whitewater and 
Garnet Hill Sub-basins.  Today’s meeting is intended to allow interested parties to 
come to the Board and provide their comments on the proposed assessments 
contained in the final Engineer’s Reports.  As indicated in the draft and final 
Replenishment Reports, the proposed Mission Creek Groundwater Replenishment 
Assessment will be set at $102 per acre-foot. The proposed Whitewater Groundwater 
Replenishment Assessment will also be set at $102 per acre-foot. The proposed 
Garnet Hill Groundwater Assessment will also be set at $102 per acre-foot. These 
assessment amounts are the same as the current 2015/2016 assessments. 
 
Staff requests a determination be made that funds should be raised by a 
replenishment assessment, and the Board set the time and place for public hearing on 
the matter for June 7, 2016, to consider resolutions of findings of fact and levying 
replenishment assessments for the fiscal year 2016/2017. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
ON 

PROPOSED REPLENISHMENT ASSESSMENT 
FOR THE 

MISSION CREEK SUBBASIN 
 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
 
NOTICE is hereby given that the Board of Directors of the Desert Water Agency will hold a public 
meeting on May 17, 2016 and has called for a public hearing on June 7, 2016 at 8:00 AM in the Board 
Room at the Agency's Operations Center, 1200 Gene Autry Trail South, Palm Springs, California. 
 
The purpose of the public hearing is to consider a proposed water replenishment assessment to be levied 
by the Desert Water Agency upon all water production, except as hereinafter provided, within the 
following described Area of Benefit: 
 

That portion of the Mission Creek Subbasin of the Upper Coachella 
Valley Groundwater Basin lying within the boundaries of the Desert 
Water Agency. 

 
The proposed replenishment assessment will apply to both groundwater extractions and surface water 
diversions within or affecting the Area of Benefit.  Minimal pumpers producing less than 10 AF/Yr, and 
diverters of stream flow that do not diminish said flow in excess of 10 AF/Yr, will be exempt from the 
replenishment assessment.  Production of water pursuant to any right to divert surface flow, which has 
been determined in a statutory adjudication proceeding, specifically, the Whitewater River Adjudication, 
will also be exempt from assessment. 
 
The purpose of the proposed assessment is to provide funds for fiscal year 2016/2017 to replenish 
groundwater supplies within the Area of Benefit.  The Consulting Engineer of the Desert Water Agency 
has concluded that such groundwater supplies are in a condition of overdraft, and that the Agency should 
continue to request its maximum Table A water allocation of State Water Project water (and to exchange 
it for Colorado River water pursuant to an exchange agreement with the Metropolitan Water District of 
Southern California) for replenishment purposes. 
 
The Consulting Engineer specifically recommends that the Agency request its maximum annual Table A 
allocation for 2016 and 2017 of 55,750 AF/Yr, and that the proposed 2016/2017 replenishment 
assessment rate for the Mission Creek Subbasin remain at $102.00/AF in accordance with the rates 
adopted by Desert Water Agency during the Proposition 218 hearing held October 19, 2010.  The 
2016/2017 replenishment assessment is expected to raise approximately $888,420 within the Mission 
Creek Subbasin Area of Benefit.  The replenishment assessment will be collected from all non-exempt 
groundwater producers on a quarterly basis. 
 
A copy of the engineering report prepared by the Agency's Consulting Engineer, entitled "Engineer's 
Report on Ground Water Replenishment and Assessment Program for the Whitewater River, Mission 
Creek, and Garnet Hill Subbasins, Desert Water Agency, 2016/2017", is available for inspection at the 
office of the Desert Water Agency, 1200 Gene Autry Trail South, Palm Springs, California. 
 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
ON 

PROPOSED REPLENISHMENT ASSESSMENT 
FOR THE 

GARNET HILL SUBBASIN 
 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
 
NOTICE is hereby given that the Board of Directors of the Desert Water Agency will hold a public 
meeting on May 17, 2016 and has called for a public hearing on June 7, 2016 at 8:00 AM in the Board 
Room at the Agency's Operations Center, 1200 Gene Autry Trail South, Palm Springs, California. 
 
The purpose of the public hearing is to consider a proposed water replenishment assessment to be levied 
by the Desert Water Agency upon all water production, except as hereinafter provided, within the 
following described Area of Benefit: 
 

That portion of the Garnet Hill Subbasin of the Upper Coachella Valley 
Groundwater Basin lying within the boundaries of the Desert Water 
Agency. 

 
The proposed replenishment assessment will apply to both groundwater extractions and surface water 
diversions within or affecting the Area of Benefit.  Minimal pumpers producing less than 10 AF/Yr, and 
diverters of stream flow that do not diminish said flow in excess of 10 AF/Yr, will be exempt from the 
replenishment assessment.  Production of water pursuant to any right to divert surface flow, which has 
been determined in a statutory adjudication proceeding, specifically, the Whitewater River Adjudication, 
will also be exempt from assessment. 
 
The purpose of the proposed assessment is to provide funds for fiscal year 2016/2017 to replenish 
groundwater supplies within the Area of Benefit.  The Consulting Engineer of the Desert Water Agency 
has concluded that such groundwater supplies are in a condition of overdraft, and that the Agency should 
continue to request its maximum Table A water allocation of State Water Project water (and to exchange 
it for Colorado River water pursuant to an exchange agreement with the Metropolitan Water District of 
Southern California) for replenishment purposes. 
 
The Consulting Engineer specifically recommends that the Agency request its maximum annual Table A 
allocation for 2016 and 2017 of 55,750 AF/Yr, and that the proposed 2016/2017 replenishment 
assessment rate for the Garnet Hill Subbasin remain at $102.00/AF in accordance with the rates adopted 
by Desert Water Agency during the Proposition 218 hearing held October 19, 2010.  The 2016/2017 
replenishment assessment is expected to raise approximately $34,680 within the Garnet Hill Subbasin 
Area of Benefit.  The replenishment assessment will be collected from all non-exempt groundwater 
producers on a quarterly basis. 
 
A copy of the engineering report prepared by the Agency's Consulting Engineer, entitled "Engineer's 
Report on Ground Water Replenishment and Assessment Program for the Whitewater River, Mission 
Creek, and Garnet Hill Subbasins, Desert Water Agency, 2016/2017", is available for inspection at the 
office of the Desert Water Agency, 1200 Gene Autry Trail South, Palm Springs, California. 
 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
ON 

PROPOSED REPLENISHMENT ASSESSMENT 
FOR THE 

WHITEWATER RIVER SUBBASIN 
 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
 
NOTICE is hereby given that the Board of Directors of the Desert Water Agency will hold a public 
meeting on May 17, 2016 and has called for a public hearing on June 7, 2016 at 8:00 AM in the Board 
Room at the Agency's Operations Center, 1200 Gene Autry Trail South, Palm Springs, California. 
 
The purpose of the public hearing is to consider a proposed water replenishment assessment to be levied 
by the Desert Water Agency upon all water production, except as hereinafter provided, within the 
following described Area of Benefit: 
 

That portion of the Whitewater River Subbasin of the Upper Coachella 
Valley Groundwater Basin lying within the boundaries of the Desert 
Water Agency. 

 
The proposed replenishment assessment will apply to both groundwater extractions and surface water 
diversions within or affecting the Area of Benefit.  Minimal pumpers producing less than 10 AF/Yr, and 
diverters of stream flow that do not diminish said flow in excess of 10 AF/Yr, will be exempt from the 
replenishment assessment.  Production of water pursuant to any right to divert surface flow, which has 
been determined in a statutory adjudication proceeding, specifically, the Whitewater River Adjudication, 
will also be exempt from assessment. 
 
The purpose of the proposed assessment is to provide funds for fiscal year 2016/2017 to replenish 
groundwater supplies within the Area of Benefit.  The Consulting Engineer of the Desert Water Agency 
has concluded that such groundwater supplies are in a condition of overdraft, and that the Agency should 
continue to request its maximum Table A water allocation of State Water Project water (and to exchange 
it for Colorado River water pursuant to an exchange agreement with the Metropolitan Water District of 
Southern California) for replenishment purposes. 
 
The Consulting Engineer specifically recommends that the Agency request its maximum annual Table A 
allocation for 2016 and 2017 of 55,750 AF/Yr, and that the proposed 2016/2017 replenishment 
assessment rate for the Whitewater River Subbasin remain at $102.00/AF in accordance with the rates 
adopted by Desert Water Agency during the Proposition 218 hearing held October 19, 2010.  The 
2016/2017 replenishment assessment is expected to raise approximately $3,443,520 within the 
Whitewater River Subbasin Area of Benefit.  The replenishment assessment will be collected from all 
non-exempt water producers on a quarterly basis. 
 
A copy of the engineering report prepared by the Agency's Consulting Engineer, entitled "Engineer's 
Report on Ground Water Replenishment and Assessment Program for the Whitewater River, Mission 
Creek, and Garnet Hill Subbasins, Desert Water Agency, 2016/2017", is available for inspection at the 
office of the Desert Water Agency, 1200 Gene Autry Trail South, Palm Springs, California. 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



All interested parties are invited to attend the public hearing, and be heard in support of or in opposition 
to the proposed assessment.  Those wishing to provide written support or opposition regarding the 
proposed assessment may provide same to the Agency at the following address and telephone number: 
 
  Desert Water Agency 
  P.O. Box 1710 
  Palm Springs, CA  92263-1710 
  (760) 323-4971 
  Attn:  Mark S. Krause, General Manager-Chief Engineer 
 
The law requires that the Board of Directors make specific findings upon all facts relevant and material to 
any replenishment assessment following the June 7, 2016 public hearing, and that action to levy any such 
assessment be taken before July 1st of this year. 
 
 
Dated: May 10, 2016 

Mark S. Krause 
General Manager-Chief Engineer 
DESERT WATER AGENCY 

 
 



7-C 
 
 
 

Copies of the  
Engineer’s Reports on the  

 
2016 / 2017 

Groundwater Replenishment  
Assessment Program for 

 
Mission Creek Subbasin 

Whitewater River Subbasin 
Garnet Hill Subbasin 

 
are available for review  

upon request 
 

May 17, 2016 
 
 

 



7-D 
 

01358.00000\6803344.1  

 
 

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
MAY 17, 2016 

 
 
RE: REQUEST ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 1130 

EXTENDING THE AGENCY’S SERVICES PRIORITY POLICY FOR 
LOWER INCOME DEVELOPMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 65589.7 

 
 
On October 7, 2005, Governor Schwarzenegger signed SB 1087 into law, which 
became effective on January 1, 2006.  The law required that developments which 
include housing units for lower income households be given priority when 
requesting water and sewer services. 

In addition to the priority service requirement, providers of water and sewer 
service were required to adopt written policies and procedures, no later than July 
1, 2006 and at least once every five years thereafter. 

On June 20, 2006, the Board adopted Resolution No. 931, approving a services 
priority policy for lower income developments in compliance with SB 1087.  On 
August 2, 2011, the Board adopted Resolution No. 1048 extending that policy for 
another five years. 

It is Staff’s recommendation that the Board adopt Resolution No. 1130 extending 
that policy again, for another five years, as required by law. 



01358.00000\6803316.1  

RESOLUTION NO. 1130 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DESERT 
WATER AGENCY EXTENDING SERVICES PRIORITY 

POLICY FOR LOWER INCOME DEVELOPMENTS 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 65589.7 requires providers of water and 

sewer services to grant priority for these services to “proposed developments that include 

housing units for lower income households;” and 

WHEREAS, the Desert Water Agency is a water and sewer service provider 

subject to the requirements of Section 65589.7; and 

WHEREAS, Section 65589.7 defines “proposed developments that include 

housing units for lower income households” as developments that include dwelling units to be 

sold or rented to lower income households, as defined in Section 50079.5 of the Health and 

Safety Code, at an affordable cost, as defined in Section 50052.5 of the Health and Safety Code, 

or an affordable rent, as defined in Section 50053 of the Health and Safety Code; and 

WHEREAS, Section 65589.7 further requires that water and sewer providers 

adopt a written policy with specific objective standards for meeting the priority requirement for 

lower income developments no later than July 1, 2006, and at least once every five years 

thereafter; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Desert Water Agency adopted Resolution 

No. 931 on June 20, 2006 setting forth a written policy to ensure that developments with lower 

income developments would receive service priority in accordance with Section 65589.7; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 1048 on August 2, 

2011, extending the same policy for another five years pursuant to Government Code Section 

65589.7; and  

WHEREAS, this Board now wishes to extend the same policy for another five 

years, again pursuant to Government Code Section 65589.7;  



01358.00000\6803316.1  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of Desert 

Water Agency as follows: 

Section 1. Policy.  In accordance with Government Code Section 65589.7, 

Desert Water Agency shall grant water and sewer service propriety to any “proposed 

developments that include housing units for lower income households.”  For purposes of this 

policy, “proposed developments that include housing units for lower income households” shall 

be developments that include dwelling units to be sold or rented to lower income households, as 

defined in Section 50079.5 of the Health and Safety Code, at an affordable cost, as defined in 

Section 50052.5 of the Health and Safety Code, or an affordable rent, as defined in Section 

50053 of the Health and Safety Code. 

Section 2. Repeal of Conflicting Resolutions or Policies.  All prior 

resolutions or policies inconsistent with this Resolution are hereby repealed but only to the extent 

that they conflict with this Resolution. 

Section 3. Effective Date.  This Resolution is effective upon its adoption. 

ADOPTED this 17th day of May, 2016. 
 
 

 
            

James Cioffi, President  
Board of Directors 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 
Board of Directors 
 



k:\sylvia\board - everything\board - staff reports\bd memos - mark\2016\05 17 16 lafco election.docx 

7-E 
 
 

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
MAY 17, 2016 

 
RE: LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION ELECTION PROCEEDINGS 

(BALLOT) 
 
 
Attached for the Board’s review are the ballot instructions for Special District 
Member of the Local Agency Formation Commission for the position of the 
Regular Special District Member (Eastern Riverside County) and Alternate 
Special District Member for LAFCO with both terms running through May 4, 
2020. 
 
A total of three nominations were received for the position of Regular Member, 
The nominees are: Margit Chiriaco Rusche (Chiriaco Summit Water District), 
Kristin Bloomer (Desert Water Agency), and Nancy Wright (Mission Springs 
Water District). 
 
A total of four nominations were received for the position of Alternate Member. 
The nominees are: Gail Paparian (Banning Library District), Heather Garcia 
(Chiriaco Summit Water District), Dan Hughes (Beaumont-Cherry Valley 
Recreation & Park District), and Robert Stockton (Western Municipal Water 
District). 
 
It is requested that the Board provide direction on the selection for the position of: 
1) Regular Special District Member (Eastern Riverside County, and 2) Alternate 
Special District Member.  
  
As presiding officer, President Cioffi is authorized to cast a ballot. Ballots must be 
received by LAFCO by 5:00 p.m., Friday, June 10, 2016. 
 





























































































9-A 

01358.00002\24872324.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

April 21, 2016 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: GENERAL MANAGER AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF DESERT WATER AGENCY 

FROM: BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP 

RE: APRIL 20 and 21, 2016 MEETINGS OF THE BOARDS OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE STATE WATER PROJECT CONTRACTORS AUTHORITY AND THE 
STATE WATER CONTRACTORS, INC. 

The April 20, 2016 meeting of the State Water Project Contractors Authority was 

conducted at the offices of SWPCA in the Senator Hotel in downtown Sacramento.  The April 

21, 2016 meeting of the Board of Directors of the State Water Contractors, Inc., was conducted 

at the Tsakopoulos Library Galleria in downtown Sacramento.  

1. SWPCA Board Meeting. 

Byron Buck, General Manager of the State and Federal Contractors Water 

Agency, again participated in the SWPCA Board meeting, by telephone, for the discussion 

regarding the proposed habitat restoration program in the Delta.  A draft agreement has been 

prepared by DWR for SFCWA to perform the “Tule Red” project, which will produce 610 acres 

of credit to be applied to the 8,000 acre restoration requirement set forth in the biological opinion 

for Delta Smelt.  SFCWA has already begun performing that project, and therefore will receive 

an early progress payment from DWR for work already performed.  Therefore, Byron anticipates 

needing only $411,000 of “up front” money from Contractors willing to participate in the 

program, instead of $750,000 originally projected.  He anticipates being able to return the “up 

front” money within three to four years.  It is possible that not all of the $411,000 will be needed, 

which led to a discussion of possibly funding half of that now and the remainder at a later date, if 

needed.  The thought had been to provide that funding from dues to be assessed to the members 

of the Delta Specific Project Committee.  However, Kern County Water Agency reported that its 

Board has decided that it will not be in a position to advance any funds to cover its share of “up 

front” costs for that project, due to low revenues for its member agencies.  In fact, KCWA 

reported that its Board had voted to reduce its share of general dues paid to SWPCA by 10%, due 



 

 
- 2 - 

01358.00002\24872324.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

to its economic distress.  Thus, the other members of SWPCA, as well as the members of the 

Delta Specific Project Committee, will need to determine how that situation is to be handled.  

Currently the Joint Powers Agreement for SWPCA and the Delta Specific Project Agreement for 

that committee do not provide for reduced levels of participation.  Dues must be paid 

proportionately, and the only alternative is for a member to withdraw from the Joint Powers 

Authority and from the Delta Specific Project Committee.  However, the other SWPCA 

members would prefer not to lose Kern County Water Agency from either group.  This is a 

matter that the other members will need to consider in setting the dues for the upcoming year. 

2. SWC Committee Meetings. 

Following the SWPCA Board meeting, most of the participants attended the SWC 

Committee meetings conducted that afternoon in the Resources Building.  A number of topics 

were discussed at those meetings.   

In the discussion of the Cal Water Fix project (the tunnel project), one item of 

note was that the long term average allocation from the State Water Project without the tunnel 

improvements is projected to be only 48% of Table A Amounts, and the long term average 

allocation with the tunnel improvement project is projected to be 62% of Table A Amounts.  

Under current conditions, the long term average is at approximately 60%, but that is expected to 

be further reduced over time due to endangered species issues.  Another item of note with respect 

to the Cal Water Fix program is the projection that the tunnels will result in an increase of 

approximately one million acre-feet per year of water transfer capability, without carriage losses 

through the Delta.  However, that projection is also subject to adjustment depending upon 

changes in the flow requirements through the Delta to protect endangered species. 

During the committee discussion, it was revealed that the previous Friday the 

United States Fish & Wildlife Service had dropped a bomb by stating that it would seek 

reconsultation of the biological opinion for the Delta Smelt so as to increase flow requirements 

through the Delta as an enhanced effort to try to save that species.  That would effectively pull 

the rug out from under the Cal Water Fix tunnel improvement project.  The Contractors believe 

that there is no basis in science for reaching a conclusion that additional flows will improve 

Delta Smelt populations.  It is viewed as a desperate measure by the Fish & Wildlife Service to 



 

 
- 3 - 

01358.00002\24872324.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

save a species that is nearing extinction.  This proposal will probably encounter political 

resistance, and therefore may be reversed.  However, the mere suggestion weakens confidence in 

the tunnel improvement project as a measure that will protect existing water supplies.  

Subsequent discussion of the topic revealed that at a recent symposium on Delta Smelt, the 

majority of biologists agreed that flow does have an effect on Smelt populations, but most 

biologists also agree that it is not a limiting effect.  There are other limitations that have a greater 

impact on Smelt survival, such as reduced habitat, reductions in the food supply, contamination, 

and predation.  In fact,  the Longfin Smelt are probably at greater risk of extinction than the 

Delta Smelt.  The feeling is that the Delta Smelt can survive on their own, without human 

intervention as was necessary in the case of the California Condor, for example. 

There was also discussion of a report issued by DWR which distinguishes 

“natural” flows from “unimpaired” flows.  The State Water Resources Control Board has acted 

on the false assumption that unimpaired flows in the Delta would replicate what natural flows 

were historically.  However, the truth is that natural flows included frequent flooding over river 

banks, and the spreading of water into areas where vegetation consumed much of the available 

water supply before it ever flowed from the Delta.  Thus, unimpaired flows significantly 

overestimate natural flow conditions.  In fact, the study reveals that natural flows would have 

resulted in the loss of as much water from the Delta as the Contractors take today, for water 

supply purposes. 

 3. Water Supply Report. 

At the SWC Board meeting, John Leahigh from DWR provided a positive report 

regarding the State’s water supply.  He stated that the State Water Project is finally getting the 

full impact of the “miracle” March, with runoff filling the reservoirs.  Lake Oroville is likely to 

top off in May.  Existing storage at Oroville is encroaching into flood control space.  However, 

the Feather River water rights holders will be entitled to releases to satisfy their rights.  As of the 

date of the meeting, DWR was releasing the minimum quantity permitted from Oroville.  Flows 

through the Delta were at 17,500 cubic feet per second.  Total storage in the San Luis Reservoir 

was a little more than one million acre-feet, and the SWP share of that was a little more than 

600,000 acre-feet.  Precipitation in the Northern Sierra was at about 120% of average, in the San 

Joaquin area it was just slightly above average, and in the Tulare area it was slightly below 



 

 
- 4 - 

01358.00002\24872324.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

average.  John reported that precipitation averages tended to decline as you traveled further 

south.  The snow pack was at 57% of average in the Northern Sierra, approximately 59% of 

average in the Central Sierra, and less than that in the Southern Sierra.  Warm conditions were 

resulting in melted snow, which was being captured in the reservoirs.  As of the date of the 

meeting, Oroville was at 93% of capacity, and 118% of average for that date.  In general, the 

northern reservoirs were doing very well, and the southern reservoirs were not doing well at all.  

This points out the difficulty in moving water through the Delta.  John pointed out that the 

existing hydrology, using the 90% probability projection, supported an allocation of 55% or 

possibly 60%.  (Later that day, DWR announced an increase in the allocation to 60% of Table A 

Amounts.) 

4. Legislative Report. 

Terry Erlewine reported on several bills of interest.  AB 1713 has been introduced 

to present an initiative measure on the ballot for approval or disapproval of a “peripheral canal” 

(which is intended to mean the tunnel project).  Terry reported that the bill barely passed out of 

committee, and probably only got out of committee as a concession to the author, but that he 

expected the bill to be killed in the next committee or on the floor of the Assembly.  He said that 

if the bill is passed by the Legislature, it will likely be vetoed by Governor Brown. 

Terry reported that the Contractors will be watching AB 2480, which is 

legislation that ostensibly supports watershed management.  The concern is that the bill could 

end up being a vehicle to assess charges to DWR for management of the Feather River 

watershed. 

Terry also reported that legislation may be introduced to eliminate a requirement 

in the Central Valley Project Improvement Act that requires the number of striped bass in the 

Delta to double.  The proposed Federal legislation would eliminate that requirement from the 

Act.  SWC consultant Chuck Hanson testified before a congressional committee in Washington 

that the legislation requiring an increase in the number of striped bass would actually be 

detrimental, as the striped bass are predators for other endangered species, such as the Delta 

Smelt. 

 



 

 
- 5 - 

01358.00002\24872324.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

5. 2016-2017 SWC Objectives. 

There was discussion of anticipated objectives for the upcoming fiscal year for the 

State Water Contractors.  The objectives will be presented at the annual membership meeting of 

the State Water Contractors in May.  The proposed objectives are divided into three categories:  

high priority, medium priority, and low priority.  A photocopy of the power point presentation is 

enclosed with this memo. 

MICHAEL T. RIDDELL 





Ending At Midnight - May 12, 2016

Graph Updated 05/13/2016 09:15 AM

LEGEND

Capacity
(TAF)

% of Capacity |% of Historical
Average

Historical

Average

Trinity Lake
60% | 71%

Shasta Reservoir
93% | 108%

Lake Oroville
96% | 117%

Folsom Lake
86% | 110%

New Melones
25% | 40%

Don Pedro Reservoir
71% | 95%

Exchequer Reservoir
51% | 81%

San Luis Reservoir
44% | 51%

Millerton Lake
59% | 80%

Perris Lake
36% | 43%

Castaic Lake
58% | 64%

Pine Flat Reservoir
56% | 85%





















9-B 

Page 1 of 2 
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
MAY 17, 2016 

 
RE: APRIL 2016 WATER USE REDUCTION FIGURES 
 
Desert Water Agency and its customers achieved a 23 percent reduction in total water 
production during April 2016 compared to the same month in 2013 – the baseline year 
used by the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) to measure 
statewide conservation achievements. Desert Water Agency’s cumulative water savings 
June through April is 25 percent. 

To comply with Governor Brown’s November 13, 2015 Executive Order to continue 
reducing statewide water use, the State Water Board extended mandatory restrictions 
and updated mandatory conservation goals for some urban areas based on factors like 
climate, growth and sustainable supply. The adopted regulations require DWA to 
achieve a mandatory 32 percent reduction. Another Executive Order from the Governor 
issued on May 9, 2016 extends emergency restrictions through January of 2017; 
however, that same day the State Water Board announced a revised method that 
agencies can use to determine their conservation standard. The new standard would go 
into effect in June. 

Below is additional information reported to the State Board for April 2016.  

Water Production for April 2016 1,998.9 AF 

Water Production for April 2013 2,594.2 AF 

Quantity of potable water delivered for all commercial, industrial, 
and institutional users for the reporting month 

595.2 AF 

The percentage of the Total Monthly Potable Water Production 
going to residential use only for the reporting month 

66% 

Population (inclusive of seasonal residents) 105,500 

Estimated R-GPCD  135.7 

How many public complaints of water waste or violation of 
conservation rules were received during the reporting month? 

27 

  



  

Page 2 of 2 
 

How many contacts (written/ verbal) were made with customers for 
actual/ alleged water waste or for a violation of conservation rules? 

78 

How many formal warning actions (e.g.: written notifications, 
warning letters, door hangers) were issued for water waste or for a 
violation of conservation rules? 

75 

How many penalties were issued for water waste or for a violation 
of conservation rules? 

54 

Comments: Desert Water Agency streamlined its water use violation policy starting 
March 1, 2016. 

The Agency’s service area is highly seasonal making population analysis a complex 
task. The State Water Resources Control Board (State Board) analyzes data on a per 
capita basis. Historically, DWA has submitted data based on the permanent population 
of the service area; however that data does not accurately reflect water use in DWA’s 
service area which has a highly seasonal population. Based on local data, the correct 
population is higher than previously reported. The Residential Gallons Per Capita Per 
Day (R-GPCD) is being submitted using the corrected population.  

DWA would like it noted that the amount of fresh water outflow to the ocean during the 
month of April was 1,545,738.8 acre feet. 

Additionally, since it began recycling water Desert Water Agency has reclaimed 87,052 
acre feet. If our recycled water production for April was taken into consideration against 
our potable production, the conservation achieved would have been several percentage 
points higher. 

 


	05 17 16 Board Agenda
	Item 2A 041916 Board Minutes
	2-A
	MINUTES
	OF THE REGULAR MEETING
	Attendance

	Item 2B 050616 Board Minutes Special
	2-B
	MINUTES
	OF THE SPECIAL MEETING
	Attendance

	Item 3 05 17 16 GM report
	MAY 17, 2016

	Item 4 051216 Exec  Comm 
	Item 6 05 17 16 April Treasurer Rpt
	Item 7A 051716 Penalty hearings staff report
	Item 7B 05 17 16 Zone 1240 Booster Plant Award Staff Report
	Item 7C 05 17 16 Staff Rpt - GW Assess 2016-2017 -  Public Meeting
	Item 7D 05 17 16 Services Priority Reso staff report
	Item 7E 05 17 16 LAFCO Election
	MAY 17, 2016

	Item 8A 05 17 16 PI Media Apr
	Item 8B 05 17 16 PI Activities Apr
	Item 9A SWC_ MEMO TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF APRIL 21 2016 BOARD MEETING (DESERT)-c2
	ADPC3CA.tmp
	UMEMORANDUM
	1. USWPCA Board Meeting.
	2. USWC Committee Meetings.


	Item 9B 05 17 16 April 2016 Water Use Reduction Figures Staff Report



